

Department of Planning & Community Development 785 Forest Parkway Forest Park, Georgia 30297 (404) 366-4720

Urban Design Review Board Minutes April 8, 2022

Call to Order: Chairman Rodney Givens called the meeting of the Urban Design Review Board to

order at 11:01 PM.

Roll Call: Those present were Chairman Rodney Givens, Karyl Clayton, Ron Dodson, Yahya

Hassan, Secretary, Daija Blocker; Caitlyn Chandler, Planner; and James Shelby,

Director of the Planning and Community Development.

Approval of

Minutes: Ron Dodson made a motion to approve the minutes from the previous meeting on

January 14, 2022. Yahya Hassan second the motion. Voting was unanimous.

New Business:

Item 1: 4975 Lake Drive

Applicant: Steve Bernard/Akenya Rock

To construct eight (8) 5,000 square foot single-family houses

Caitlyn Chandler states that the project will be construction of eight (8) 5,000 square foot single-family houses at 4975 Lake Drive. The houses will be constructed in a Modern Contemporary style. The two to three story houses will have an exterior facade consisting of brick and Hardie-Plank. The front of the houses will be brick, while the sides and rear will be covered with Hardie-Plank and a brick skirt. The exterior colors of the houses will be white or neutral colors, banded by black trim. The houses will feature large curtain windows. A garage will face the rear. The landscape will consist of 90% grass and 10% shrubbery. The entire subdivision will be fenced in with a wood, steel, and brick fence. The columns of the fence will be brick, while the slats will be steel, and pressure treated wood. Caity Chandler states that currently the address is in the RM district but they will be updating the zoning so it will be in a RS district. The subject property has sat vacant for many years. It once housed a singlefamily home that has since been demolished. The City of Forest Park previously owned the property before it was purchased by the applicant within the last two years. The applicant is now in the process of developing the property into a small subdivision consisting of eight lots. Eight two-story houses will be built upon these lots. The applicant has already cleared out all the trees on the property. The proposed project would be consistent and compatible with the city's land use and development, plans, goals, and objectives. The project's design is in harmony with the general character developments in the vicinity, considering factors such as mass, building



Department of Planning & Community Development 785 Forest Parkway Forest Park, Georgia 30297 (404) 366-4720

materials, placement, height, land use patterns, and consistency of exterior architectural treatment. The design components were planned in such a fashion that they are physically and aesthetically related and coordinating with other elements of the project and surrounding environment. The proposed project is compatible with the City of Forest Park's requirements and will not cause an adverse effect on the surrounding community. For this reason, Staff recommends to the UDRB that the proposed project be APPROVED.

Rodney Givens introduces Karyl Clayton, the new Board member.

Karyl Clayton states that she is from Clayton County and has a variety of project management and building skills that she can bring to the board.

Rodney Givens states that the applicant, Steve Bernard can talk about his project.

Steve Bernard states that he is most excited about the fact that the houses are SIP buildings, which are Structural Insulated Panel buildings. The design of the buildings will leave zero footprint and energy efficient buildings. The houses will also have Tesla solar panels and batteries in the house. He wants to make first class products and make sure the people who live in the house have lower cost to maintain.

Rodney Givens states the houses will be more affordable. He asks Steve Bernard he was talking about the floor plans when he said all houses were all the same.

Steve Bernard answers yes, all buildings will look alike structurally but they will be finished differently. He states that there are three stories and on the top of the third floor there will be an open deck.

Ron Dodson asks about the gable roof on the elevations and if they are out of the picture.

Steve Bernard answers that they will not be there because the panels must be installed.

Caity Chandler states you can see the shed roof on the some of the pictures.

Steve Bernard states that the city is making history and the SIP homes will be the first few in the Metro Atlanta area.

Yahya Hassan asks if there are parking garages on the first level of the homes.

Steve Bernard states that all the parking is in the rear of the buildings.



Department of Planning & Community Development 785 Forest Parkway Forest Park, Georgia 30297 (404) 366-4720

Yahya Hassan asks if it is for one or two cars.

Steve Bernard answers two cars.

Rodney Givens asks about the house on the triangle end of the subdivision lot and how they will be able to get into the garage and park.

Caity Chandler answers that there is a driveway that they can use.

Rodney Givens states that someone might have trouble getting into the garage at that angle.

Caity Chandler says the driveway is not as big as other houses, but it is big enough.

Steve Bernard made sure his architects made the garage big enough for a SUV to fit and they also made the garage doors bigger than average.

Rodney Givens asks if they would make the doors one big door or two doors.

Steve Bernard states that he designed the houses with two doors just in case one messes up.

Ron Dodson asks about the setbacks on the street for the house on the corner lot.

Caity Chandler states that they got variances on the lot, so they are less than what typically be required.

Ron Dodson states that since the drive is between the houses the one house on the corner of the lot could have an entrance next to it.

Steve Bernard states that that is where the drive is located.

James Shelby asks if it is possible to reconfigure the one house so that the person can pull right into the driveway. He said the concern is getting in and out of the driveway and garage. If he could fix the house a little bit so they can drive straight in.

Stave Bernard says that they cannot because the SIP is already in process of being built.

Rodney Givens suggest turn the house around to make it easier to enter the driveway.

Caity Chandler states that the issue with that is the variances that were already approved for the setbacks.



Department of Planning & Community Development 785 Forest Parkway Forest Park, Georgia 30297 (404) 366-4720

Steve Bernard says that if they change anything they have to go back to Clayton County Water Authority because of the storm water runoff.

Rodney Givens says that they might be better off changing the houses placement because it might be better for Clayton County Water Authority.

Caity Chandler asks if Steve will be doing LEED certifications for the houses.

Steve Bernard states that they are trying to because they are SIP homes, they will be able to get some type of energy efficient benefit.

Karyl Clayton asks about stormwater runoff and where that will go. She also asks about the sidewalks and walking to the park across the street.

James Shelby states that those were good questions, but the Urban Design Review Board just looks at the design of the project.

Steve Bernard states that before he gets approved for anything they must get approval from the Clayton County Water Authority. He also states that the playground was supposed to be there as a stormwater runoff, but they are still working out the details. He states there will be a permanent fence around the whole subdivision and each individual house will have their own gate and access to the sidewalk.

Karyl Clayton asks about the parking for the guests because there is parking across the street at the park.

Steve Bernard said the residents should have their guests park inside the subdivision and each driveway should be able to have an extra three cars fit. Also, ask the neighbors to park on both sides of the street because it is wide enough.

Karyl Clayton asks if the area where the playground or detention pound is located will be fenced in or open.

Steve Bernard answers that it will have to be fenced in. They wanted the space to be useable space (playground), but it depends on Clayton County.

Ron Dodson made a motion to approve to construct the eight houses at 4975 Lake Street. Karyl Clayton seconded the motion to approve. Voting was unanimous.



Department of Planning & Community Development 785 Forest Parkway Forest Park, Georgia 30297 (404) 366-4720

Item 2: Vote on Chair and Vice Chair

Rodney Givens opens the nominations for Chair.

Ron Dodson nominates Rodney Givens to continue as Chair because he has not missed a meeting.

No other nominations, all board members agree to Rodney Givens as Chair.

Rodney Givens opens nominations for Vice Chair.

Rodney Givens nominates Ron Dodson.

No other nominations, all board members agree to Ron Dodson as Vice Chair.

Other Business: No other Business.

Adjournment: There being no further business, Ron Dodson made a motion to adjourn the meeting

at 11:46PM, Yahya Hassan seconded the motion. Voting was unanimous.